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The eighteen room Lake Shore House was built at Glenbrook. Lake Tahoe 
in 1863 by a Captain Augustus W. Pray with the help of N.E. Murdock,
G.W. Warren and Rufus Walton. They settled on the'Glenbrook meadows in 
the spring of 1860. In 1^61 they constructed a sawmill powered by an 
over -shot waterwheel at trie southeast corner of Glenbrook Bay, the first 
sawmill to be built on the! shoreline of the lake. They furnished lumber 
to Carson City via the Lal^e Bigler Toll Road also constructed in 1863. 
This was also the first development of any consequence on Lake Tahoe, but 
the second hotel. The Glejnbrook House was built one-half mile up the 
canyon .earlier in -1863. :

Captain Pray bought out hjjs .partners and sometime later was, bought out 
by a combine that began majssive logging operations in the Basin. Duane 
LeRoy Bliss, a former member of the Virginia City branch of the Bank of 
California, Henry Yeringtqn, construction superintendent of the Virginia 
and Truckee Railroad plus iDarius Ogden Mills were the gentlemen who put 
together the Carson and Ta|hoe Lumber and Fluming Company in 1873. Bliss 
was president and general jmanager. The Basin was logged out at the turn- 
of-the-century , but Bliss |was astute enough to turn the milling complex 
into a resort area. The ^reat grandson of Duane Bliss retains a one-half 
interest on the property l^odayj The other one-half being held by the 
R.T. Nahas Company operating as Glenbrook

In 1906, Lake Shore ^use jwas : .moved, a sh,ort distance and. together with 
a store/meeting hall/dance; . ha!ll and the Jellerspn Hotel, also moved, 
formed, with alterations a|nd additions the new Glenbrook Inn. The two 
hotels -formed-- the;. separate; wings of the new inn that faced Glenbrook Bay. 
At that time the front porch and the second floor balcony of the Lake 
Shore House were removed. | The second floor access. door was converted 
to a window and two of thq four front lower level doors were eliminat­ 
ed as well as the outside istairway. The seventeen foot sign across the 
front was removed. :

When built, and as restored, the two story building has standard ranch 
house style with traditional Georgian, motif s in the mouldings. These 
include crown, ogee and bee} types organized in a simple, straight­ 
forward style. The house jwas originally painted white with a dark 
beige trim. This color sqheme was used in the recent restoration.

Description of the Exteriqr;

1. Overall dimensions:! 29' o x 63'9"
Shape: rectangular; , narrow facade "at front".

2. Foundation: originally beams on rock; now concrete block.

3. Walls: shiplap
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Lake Shore House is of statewide signficance because of Its age and 
association with major personages and events entertwined with the 
development of the Lake Tahoe Basin and the Comstock. "

The building was built and owned by Captain Augustus W. Pray who pion­ 
eered the settlement at Glenbrook and who was first to engage in any 
major lumbering operation in the area. He built and operated the first 
sawmill in the Basin. His hotel was the second hotel built in the 
Basin and is currently the oldest hotel building still standing at Lake 
Tahoe.

Lake Shore House could stand on its own significance, but in associa­ 
tion with the Carson and Tahoe Lumber and Fluming Company, it acquires 
added significance. In 1873, this corporation was formed by moneyed 
interests who had earlier played supporting roles in the development 
of the Comstock. Other small sawmills were' constructe'd in the Tahoe 
Basin following Pray's venture. These sawmills began using V-flumes, 
the local invention of one J. W. Haines, that was to revolutionize the 
transportation of lumber and cordwood from high elevations to low. Thus 
constructed, the flumes carrying small streams of water could rapidly 
transport large amounts of material at low cost.

The astute business partners-to-be quickly perceived supplying the 
pent-up demand of timber and cordwood on the Comstock. In 1868, five 
years after the construction of the Bigler Toll Road, the Summit 
Fluming Company was created. By 1872, it had consolidated the various 
V-flume systems in Clear Creek Canyon between Spooner's Summit and 
Carson City into one entity. It was then possible to dump material 
into the flume at Spooner's Summit and float it to Carson City, thus 
eliminating the wagon haul between these two points.

By 1873 the new corporation was formed, well endowed financially and 
talent-wise. They bought out the Glenbrook mills, including Augustus 
Pray and his hotel, and the Summit Fluming Company's Spooner's Clear 
Creek-Carson City lumber, cordwood and fluming enterprises. The Carson 
and Tahoe Lumber and Fluming Company went on to become the biggest of 
the three huge Comstock wood and lumber combines, taking more than 
seven hundred and fifty million (750,000,000) board feet of lumber and 
500,000 cords of wood from the Lake Tahoe Basin forest during its 25 
year lifetime. It reached the zenith of its operations in the mid- 
1870's and finally closed its books in 1898.
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

Beginning at a point at the intersection of the frontage road and 
Glenbrook Creek thence easterly up the creek 200' then north 50', 
thence due west to the frontage road, thence south along center line of 
said road to the point of beginning.
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4. Structural system: wood frame

5. Porches: Full front; partial north side. The front is 8' 5 1/2" 
wide x 28'0" across; no balustrade. Five beveled wood columns 
support the balcony. The side porch is 12 '0 x 45 '0" covered by 
a hip roof.

6. Chimneys: One brick, located front off center, north side 
adjacent to the ridge board.

7. Openings:

a. Windows: Double-hung; six over six light.

b. Doors: Three at the front; two downstairs and one up­ 
stairs opening to the balcony. Two doors are 
located on the north wall, lower level.

c. Roof: Gable on the main unit; hip for the north porch; 
shed for the rear-most addition and flat on the 
front porch. The covering on the gable roof is 
cedar shingles.

d. Cornice: Board on the main unit with returns at the 
corners. The frieze is plain. The gable 
roofed addition has exposed rafters with a 
fascia board. The woodshed has exposed, ex­ 
tended rafters.

Through careful research and attention to detail, the building has 
recently been restored to its original late 19th century appearance. 
Offices occupy the lower floor with guest accommodations on the second

A highly visible change from the original appearance is in the run of 
the stairs at the front. In the restoration it was highly impractical 
to restore the straight run of the stairs as the adjacent buildings 
over a creek had long since been removed. The stair run now returns 
on itself.
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At the height of its activity, the company owned or controlled over 
50,000 acres of prime virgin timber land in the Lake Tahoe Basin. It 
operated four saw mills on Glenbrook Bay at one time or another, two 
steam tugs to tow log booms to the mills, two logging railroads, several 
large logging camps and a large planing mill and box factory in Carson 
City.

Timber stands were exhausted by the mid 1890's and mining on the Corn- 
stock had greatly slackened by 1896. All lumbering operations closed 
down in 1898 and the Bliss family (now sole owners) hastened to form a 
new corporation, the Lake Tahoe Railway and Transportation Company. 
In 1899 conversion of the milling center to a recreation complex was 
begun at Glenbrook Bay, The complex was to include two summer resorts, 
a scenic narrow-gauge railroad and total of four excursion steamers on 
Lake Tahoe. Scrap material from the milling complex was used to maximum 
advantage. It was during this transition period that Lake Shore House 
was incorporated with other existing buildings and moved to form the 
Glenbrook Inn.

From 1906 until its closure in 1975, the Glenbrook Inn and resort 
hosted many prominent families, particularly from the Bay Area as well 
as Hollywood entertainers. Today Glenbrook is undergoing another 
transformation to that of a posh residental/resort complex. Lake Shore 
House has been restored to its pre-1906 appearance. The rest of Glen­ 
brook Inn remains intact, but its future is uncertain.


